SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 23, 2010
1:34 p.m

1: 34: 41 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Hoffman called the Senate Finance Commttee
nmeeting to order at 1:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice-Chair
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Joe Paskvan; Tyson Fick, Legislative Liaison,
DCCED; Patrice Wal sh, Chief Exam ner, DCCED;, Bryan Butcher,
Director, Governnent Affairs and Public Relations, Al aska
Housing Finance Corporation, Departnent O Revenue; Joe
Dubl er, Director of Fi nance, Al aska Housing Finance
Cor poration; Senator Hollis French.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Scott Smth, Alaska Broadcaster's Association; Al pheus
Bul l ard, Legislative Legal Services; Matt Wallace, Al aska
Public Interest Research Goup; Jason Brune, Resource
Devel opnent Counci | .

SUMVARY

SB 217 GUARANTEED REVENUE BONDS FOR VETERANS

Senat e Fi nance Committee 1 03/23/10 1:34 P. M



SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

HB

HB

247

248

262

263

279

284

300

302

SB 217 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for
further consideration.

EXTENDI NG BOARD OF PHARMACY

SB 247 was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "do
pass” recomendation and with a new fiscal inpact
note from the Departnent of Commerce, Comrunity
and Econom c Devel opnent .

EXTEND BD OF MARI TAL & FAM LY THERAPY

SB 248 was REPORTED out of Committee with a "do
pass" recomendation and with a new fiscal inpact
note from the Departnent of Conmerce, Comrunity
and Econom c Devel opnent .

EXTEND BOARD OF SOCI AL WORK EXAM NERS

SB 262 was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "do
pass” recommendat i on and W th previ ously
publ i shed fiscal inpact note: FN1 (DCCED).

EXTEND BOARD OF PROFESSI ONAL COUNSELORS

SB 263 was REPORTED out of Committee with a "do
pass” recommendat i on and W th previ ously
publ i shed fiscal inpact note: FN 1 (DCCED).
MORTGAGE LENDI NG

SB 279 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for
further consideration.

CAMPAI GN EXPENDI TURES

SB 284 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for
further consideration

APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS

HB 300 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for
further consideration.

APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

Senat e Fi nance Committee 2 03/23/10 1:34 P. M



HB 302 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for
further consideration.

1: 34: 51 PM

#sb279
SENATE BILL NO. 279

"An Act relating to regulation of residential nortgage
I ending, including the licensing of nortgage |enders,
nort gage brokers, and nortgage |oan originators, and
conpliance wth certain federal Ilaws relating to
residential nortgage lending; and providing for an
effective date.”

1: 35: 59 PM

SENATOR JOE PASKVAN stated that SB 279 is an act relating
to the regulation of residential nortgage |ending including
the licensing of nortgage |enders, nortgage brokers, and
nortgage Jloan originators in conpliance wth certain
federal laws relating to residential nortgage |ending. The
purpose of the legislation is to bring Al aska' s nortgage
| ending regulation act into conpliance with federal law. He
nmenti oned the SAFE act which requires each state to |icense
nortgage |oan originators through a nationw de database and
to anend its statutes to nmeet mninmum |icensing standards.

The Division of Banking and Securities wll continue to
review the uniform application submtted, and state
regulators wll continue to issue the |licenses. This

legislation is supported by the National Conference of
State Legislators and the National Conference of Insurance
Legi sl ators.

1: 39: 31 PM

TYSON FI CK, LEG SLATIVE LIAISON, DEPARTMENT OF COVWERCE,
COVWUNI TY, AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT (DCCED), explained the
legislation further. He pointed out that abuses in the
industry led to the current financial crisis in the United

States. He explained the l|icensing regulation agency and
their responsibilities. The national licensing system and
registry i ncreases consuner protection, enhances
supervision, and streamines the licensing process for

|icensees. He nentioned the passage of HB 221 which joined
Alaska with the national registry. He noted that SB 229
will bring the state into conpliance with the federal SAFE
act by anmending our statutes to reach the mninmm

Senat e Fi nance Committee 3 03/23/10 1:34 P. M



standards. The objectives of the anendnents are to provide
i ncreased accountability, educat i on, and tracking of
nortgage |lending professions, reduce fraud, and provide
consunmers with free and accessible information.

PATRI CE WALSH, CHElI F EXAM NER, DCCED, delivered a sectiona

anal ysis. She explained that the changes were the m ninmm
standards required by the federal governnment. She pointed
out Page 5, Section 7, Line 9 and the reference to

"transfers of nortgage loan originators |icense" where
"nortgage |oan" was added to "originator”. She pointed out
Page 6, Section 11, Line 14 referencing an annual |icense

where the state requires renewal each year on Decenber 31.
She continued with Section 11, Line 24 regarding permt
regulation to set application, examnation, and |icense
fees. She detailed Page 6, Line 31, Section 12 which
requires 20 hours of pre |icensing education. She continued
with Page 10, Section 18, Line 22 which is a new section
allowing for a provisional |icense while a background check
i s perforned.

1:45:58 PM

Ms. Walsh continued with Section 22, Page 12, Line 23
referring to paper licenses. The national registry has a
section of consunmer access where a |icensee's |icensing

credentials can be accessed onli ne.

1:47:18 PM

Co-Chair Stednman asked if licenses will be posted in the
licensee's office or would the public rely on the online
ver si on. Ms. Walsh explained that the departnent is
striving to elimnate paper licenses. She commented that

many busi nesses operate online.

Ms. Wal sh continued with Page 14, Section 29, Line 10 which
is an addition permtting a branch office to track
activity. She continued with Page 15, Section 35, Line 26
whi ch nodifies continuing education requirenents. Currently
the law offers 24 hours of continuing education for a two
year tine period. She pointed out Page 41, Section 85, Line
20 whi ch includes the repeal ed secti ons.

1: 50: 15 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 4 03/23/10 1:34 P. M



Co- Chair Stednman asked about a potential sales transaction
with an out of state licensee. Ms. Walsh answered that an
out of state licensee nmust apply for a license in Al aska.

Co-Chair Stednman asked if a licensee nust be licensed in
Alaska to solicit nortgage business. M. Wlsh concurred
that the person nust have an Al askan license to sel
Al askan property.

Senator Huggins asked if the bill allows a person to handl e
the nortgage on their neighbor's house. M. Wlsh stated
that a person nust have a license to sell a house that does
not belong to them

Senator Thomas noted that real estate agents are not
consi dered nortgage | oan originators. Ms. Wl sh concurred.

Senat or O son asked about the education requirenments listed
on Pages 6 and 15. He asked about potential changes. M.
Wal sh  responded that <continuing education requirenents
al ready exi st and she noted the changes.

Senator O son asked about classes. M. Walsh noted that
cl asses are offered through a national nortgage |icensing
system The classes are offered in a classroom a classroom
equi val ent, or an instructor |ed webinar.

1: 54: 23 PM

Senator O son asked about Page 14 and the |icensing of
branch offices. He asked how the Alaska branch m ght
address issues from the |ower 48. M. Wilsh responded that
t he branch application process requires branch
identification although licensing and registration nunbers
are not used. A formal process would include a separate
registration to all ow observation of the branch activity.

Senator A son did not understand how this would cut down on
fraud.

Co- Chair Stedman asked about potential reciprocity between
the states. Ms. Walsh noted that there is not reciprocity,
but many conpanies are licensed in nmultiple states. Co-
Chair Stednan asked why no reciprocity exists for the rea
estate industry.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 5 03/23/10 1:34 P. M



Ms. WAl sh responded that the state has requirenents about
obtaining a license. She added that the steps for obtaining
a license may be simlar throughout various states.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if the steps in the statute refer to
t he exam nation

1: 57: 36 PM

Ms. Walsh responded that an application for |icensure
requires financial statenments and fingerprints. Felonies or
bankruptcies can lead to denial of |icense.

Co-Chair Stednan asked if a person licensed in another
state is required to sit for an additional exam in Al aska.
Ms. Walsh noted that the nortgage loan originator is
required to take two tests. One test is a national test
recogni zed in every state. The second conponent of testing
is the Alaska state test.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if other states have simlar
requi renents. Ms. Wal sh responded yes.

Senat or Paskvan stressed that the intent of the bill is to
bring Alaska into conformance with the national SAFE act.
Alaska's laws with respect to real estate can differ from
other state's | aws.

Co-Chair Stedman nention one fiscal inpact note from the
Department of Conmerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent
for $131 thousand.

SB 279 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

2:01:34 PM AT EASE
2:02: 36 PM RECONVENE
#hb300

#hb302

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 300(FI N

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment, for certain
prograns, and to capitalize funds; and providing for
an effective date."

Senat e Fi nance Committee 6 03/23/10 1:34 P. M



CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 302(FI N

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and
capi tal expenses of t he state's i nt egrated
conprehensi ve nmental health program and providing for
an effective date."

Co- Chair Hoffrman explained the changes in the CS with the
i ncorporation of the subcomm ttee recomendati ons.

2:03:46 PM AT EASE
2:04:11 PM RECONVENED

Co-Chair Stedman proposed senate conmttee substitute for
comrittee substitute, work draft nunber 26-GH 2823\U. There
bei ng NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

Co- Chair Stedman proposed senate commttee substitute for
commttee substitute, work draft nunber 26-GH 2825\T. There
bei ng NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

CSHB 300 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

CSHB 302 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb217
SENATE BI LL NO. 217

"An Act relating to the issuance of state-guaranteed
revenue bonds by the Al aska Housi ng Fi nance
Corporation to finance nortgages for qualifying
veterans; and providing for an effective date."

2:05:32 PM

BRYAN BUTCHER, DI RECTOR, GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS AND PUBLIC
RELATI ONS, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE CORPCRATI ON, DEPARTMENT
OF REVENUE, reviewed the legislation. He explained that SB
217 requests approval through general election of bond
sales for Alaska Housing Finance Corporation's (AHFC
veteran nortgage program He provided history on the
veteran nortgage program which provided a |ower interest
rate to veterans. He explained that five states opted in;
Texas, California, Oegon, Wsconsin, and Alaska. Al aska
can sell wup to $100 mllion in bonds for the program

Senat e Fi nance Committee 7 03/23/10 1:34 P. M



however, federal |law requires a general obligation of the
state's citizens.

Co-Chair Stedman asked about the current nunber of veteran
| oans out st andi ng.

JOE DUBLER, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE
CORPORATI ON, responded that $341 nmillion of outstanding
veteran | oans exist at an average rate of six percent. The
current interest rate is 4.625 percent. The bonds issued
are $2.6 mllion. Current outstanding bonds equal $338
mllion. The remaining authorization from prior voter
approvals is $95 nmillion. He informed of $11 nillion in
del i nquent | oans.

Co-Chair Stedman asked if the corporation was seeking
aut hori zation for the $600 mllion.

Co-Chair Stedman nentioned the one fiscal note from
Depart ment of Revenue requesting authorization to use $150
thousand in AHFC receipts to cover the cost of voter
educati on. He asked about marketing or i nformation
di sseni nation to encourage public participation.

M. Butcher spoke to the process in 2002, which involved
mailers for every Alaska household along with I|inmted
tel evision and radi o adverti sing.

Senat or Egan assunmed that the funding would be used for
instruction and information. M. Butcher concurred.

SB 217 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb284
SENATE BILL NO. 284

"An Act relating to state election canpaigns, the
duties of the Alaska Public Ofices Comm ssion, the
reporting and di scl osure of expendi tures and
i ndependent expenditures, the filing of reports, and
the identification of certain communications in state
el ection canpaigns; and providing for an effective
date."

2:12: 51 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 8 03/23/10 1:34 P. M



SENATOR HOLLI'S FRENCH discussed the legislation. The bil
addresses issues relating to corporations and unions and
the independent expendi tures made for and agai nst
candi dates during an election. He pointed out Section 4 and
di scl osure of expenditures made by unions and corporations
for and against candidates. He noted replacenent of old
| anguage on Page 2, Line 6 concerning dues of conm ssion.
He described many instances in the bill where simlar
changes occur. He stated that "person" refers to everyone
with a broad definition. He nentioned added provisions that
require that the expenditures be made from an independent
account as shown in Section 8. Section 10 prohibits
expenditures by foreign nationals.

2:16: 15 PM

Senator French referred to Section 13, the disclainer
section. He nentioned that the disclainmer refers to the
"paid for by" section of canpaign advertising. He noted
that the disclainmer necessary in radi o ads was shortened.

2:18: 16 PM

Co- Chair Stedman asked about Page 9, Section 18. Senator
French explained the Section describes a current provision
that replaces the phrase "candidate, group, or individual”
with "person" to bring in the corporations and unions
wor king with el ections.

Co-Chair Stedman asked about punishnment for unscrupul ous
behavi or. Senator French responded that canpai gn m sconduct
in the second degree is a C ass B m sdeneanor puni shabl e by
a $1000 fine and 90 days in jail.

Senat or Huggi ns asked about the $100 pl ateau. He noted that
many candi dates receive $99 contributions. He asked why all
contributions are not reportable. Senator French responded
that all contributions are reportable; the $100 plateau
requires information such as the contributor's occupation
and enployer. He expressed confort in total disclosure of
contributions to corporations and uni ons.

Senator Huggins asked how this provision applies to the
Pebbl e M ne. Senat or French answer ed t hat t hose
expenditures would not be inmmediately identified by this
bill.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 9 03/23/10 1:34 P. M



Senat or Huggins asked how the bill affects a phone bank
Senator French responded that iif the phone bank was
sponsored by a candidate, this bill would have no inpact.
He supposed that the phone bank comunication transmtted
by auto nedia nust be acconpanied by a disclainmer as shown
on Page 8, Lines 4, 5, 6, and 7.

2:22:29 PM

Co-Chair Stedman nentioned one zero fiscal note from the
Ofice of the Governor and one fiscal inpact note from the
Department of Administration requesting one additional
staff person for the Alaska Public Ofices Conm ssion for
t he anmobunt of $131, 200.

2:23: 02 PM

SCOTT SM TH, ALASKA BROADCASTER S ASSCCI ATl ON (via
tel econference) requested clarification of Page 1, Line 11
specifying the effect of the legislation on ballot
propositions. Senator French noted that the nentioned piece
exists already in statute. The change on Page 1, Lines 9,
10, 11 is the elimnation of qualifiers. The chapter now
applies to any person meking a comrunication for or against
a ball ot proposition.

M. Smth conmunicated that the broadcasters agree with the
need for transparent elections and full disclainer of
nmessages for the general population. He expressed a smal
concern about the percent of a given nessage required for
multiple contributors. He suggested that an alternative
dimension of the commerci al nmessage communicate the
additional contributors. The clarification would then allow
the limt of the disclainer not to exceed 33 percent of any
gi ven 30 second nessage.

2:26:10 PM

MATT WALLACE, ALASKA PUBLIC | NTEREST RESEARCH GROUP (via
tel econference) testified in support of the |egislation.

2:28:11 PM

JASON BRUNE, RESOURCE DEVEL OPMVENT COUNCI L (via
tel econference), testified in support of the |egislation.
He pointed out Section 15, Page 5 appears to potentially
impact an investor's ability to fight an initiative that
targets them because they are a donestic subsidiary of a

Senat e Fi nance Committee 10 03/23/10 1:34 P. M



foreign corporation. The Resources Developnent Counci
(RDC) supports open disclosure and transparency in election
canpai gns, however are opposed to a law prohibiting
contributions that allow RDC nenbers to fight initiatives
that target their industries.

2: 30: 08 PM

Senator Huggins discussed M. Brune's testinony and asked
if Alaska is in conpliance with the Federal Governnent's
process.

ALPHEUS BULLARD, LEQ SLATIVE LEGAL SERVI CES responded that
Paragraph 5 applies to a donestic subsidiary of an entity
described in Paragraph 2 of 4. The entity described is a
foreign national. The paragraph does not prohibit donestic
subsi diari es or corporations.

Senat or Huggins requested further clarification. Senator
French stressed the inportance of creating a bill that can
be easily wunderstood. He offered to provide further
assi stance and expl anation for Senator Huggins.

SB 284 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb247
SENATE BI LL NO. 247

"An Act extending the term nation date of the Board of
Pharmacy; and providing for an effective date."

2:33: 14 PM

Senator O son spoke to the necessity of the |egislation. He
noted that the Board of Pharmacy is a necessary conponent
of the health care delivery system

2:34:04 PM AT EASE
2:35: 09 PM RECONVENED

Co-Chair Stedman nentioned one fiscal note from the
Department of Conmerce, Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnent
showi ng the cost of $130,300 in receipt supported services
for the continuation of the board. Funding is included in
t he FY11l operating budget.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 11 03/23/10 1:34 P. M



Co-Chair Hoffman MOVED to report CSSB 247 out of Conmittee
wi th individual recommendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

SB 247 was REPORTED out of Comrmittee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with a new fiscal inpact note from the
Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity and Econom c Devel opnent.

#sb248
SENATE BI LL NO. 248

"An Act extending the term nation date of the Board of
Marital and Family Therapy; and providing for an
effective date."

2:36: 30 PM

Co-Chair Stedman nentioned one fiscal note from the
Departnent of Conmerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent
showing the cost of continuing the board at $23,200 in
recei pt supported services.

Co-Chair Hoffman MOVED to report CSSB 248 out of Conmttee
wi th individual reconmendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

SB 248 was REPCRTED out of Committee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with a new fiscal inpact note from the
Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity and Econom c Devel opnent.

2:37:23 PM

#sb262

SENATE BILL NO 262
"An Act extending the term nation date of the Board of
Social Wrk Exam ners; and providing for an effective
date."

2:37: 36 PM

Co-Chair Stedman nentioned one fiscal note from the
Department of Conmmerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent
showing the cost of continuing the board at $58,800 in
recei pt supported services.

Co-Chair Hoffman MOVED to report CSSB 262 out of Conmittee

wi th individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 12 03/23/10 1:34 P. M



SB 262 was REPORTED out of Committee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with previously published fiscal inpact
note: FN1 ( DCCED).

#sb263
SENATE BI LL NO. 263

"An Act extending the term nation date of the Board of
Pr of essi onal Counsel ors; and provi di ng for an
effective date.”

2:38: 52 PM

Co-Chair Stedman noted that this is the second hearing on
the bill. He noted the fiscal inpact note from the
Department of Conmerce, Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnent
with the cost of $50,900 in receipt supported services.

Co-Chair Hoffman MOVED to report SB 263 out of Conmttee
with individual recommendations and the acconpanying fiscal
note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

SB 263 was REPCRTED out of Committee with a "do pass”
recommendation and with previously published fiscal inpact
note: FN 1 (DCCED).

2:40: 10 PM

#
ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 2:40 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 13 03/23/10 1:34 P. M



